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Covered Horseraces as defined by 15 
U.S.C. 3051(5) shall register with the 
Authority, and shall provide and update 
as necessary the following information: 

(1) The name and contact information, 
including email address and direct phone 
number, of the Director or Officer with 
principal responsibility for conducting 
Covered Horseraces to serve as the contact 
person for the Racetrack; 

(2) The Racetrack’s physical address, 
mailing address, phone number, and general 
delivery email address; and 

(3) Identification of the majority or 
controlling ownership interests of the 
Racetrack. Any change in the majority or 
controlling ownership interests or control of 
a Racetrack shall constitute a material change 
and shall be reported to the Authority within 
30 days of the change. 

(f) Registration exemptions. Vendors 
of goods or services and racetrack 
employees or contractors who do not 
have access to restricted areas of a 
Racetrack in the ordinary course of 
carrying out their duties are not 
required to register with the Authority. 
For purposes of this rule, mutuel 
employees are deemed not to have 
access to restricted areas of a Racetrack. 

(g) Agreement with respect to 
Authority rules, standards, and 
procedures. Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 
3054(d) of the Act, a Covered Person 
who registers with the Authority shall 
agree to be subject to and comply with 
the rules, standards, and procedures of 
the Authority developed and approved 
under 15 U.S.C. 3054(c). These rules, 
standards, and procedures are set forth 
in the Rule 8000 Series. 

(h) Accuracy of and Changes to 
Registration Information. 

(1) Complete and Correct Information. 
Information provided by a Covered Person in 
the course of registration shall be complete 
and correct. 

(2) Material Changes in Registration 
Information. A Covered Person registered 
with the Authority shall update registration 
information to accurately report any material 
changes in any information required for 
registration by the Authority. 

(3) Penalties. As set forth in Rule 8100(g), 
failure to register with the Authority, making 
a knowingly false statement or omission of 
information in an application for registration 
with the Authority, or failure to advise the 
Authority of material changes in information 
provided to the Authority as required under 
any provision in Authority rules shall 
constitute a violation and shall be subject to 
the sanctions set forth in Rule 8200 and the 
disciplinary procedures set forth in Rule 
8300. 

(i) Registration of Covered Horses. 
Responsible Persons as defined in Rule 
2010 shall ensure that Covered Horses 
as defined by 15 U.S.C. 3051(4) are 
registered with the Authority. The 
following information shall be provided 

by all Covered Persons who register 
horses with the Authority: 

(1) The Covered Horse’s name and year of 
birth; 

(2) The name of the dam of the Covered 
Horse; 

(3) The ID number of the Owner of the 
Covered Horse; 

(4) The location of the Covered Horse; 
(5) The Vaccine and Health Information 

required by Rule 2143; and 
(6) Any other information reasonably 

required by the Authority to fulfill its 
statutory duties under the Act. 

(j) Penalty for Failure to Register a 
Covered Horse. Failure by a Responsible 
Person to register a Covered Horse with 
the Authority shall constitute a 
violation and shall be subject to the 
sanctions set forth in Rule 8200 and the 
disciplinary procedures set forth in Rule 
8300. 

By direction of the Commission. 
Joel Christie, 
Acting Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2022–10709 Filed 5–16–22; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6750–01–P 

GENERAL SERVICES 
ADMINISTRATION 

[Notice–PBS–2022–01; Docket No. 2022– 
0002; Sequence No. 09] 

Federal Management Regulation; 
Designation of Federal Building 

AGENCY: Public Buildings Service (PBS), 
General Services Administration (GSA). 
ACTION: Notice of a bulletin. 

SUMMARY: The attached bulletin 
announces the redesignation of a 
Federal building. 
DATES: This bulletin expires November 
16, 2022. The building designation 
remains in effect until canceled or 
superseded by another bulletin. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
General Services Administration, Public 
Buildings Service (PBS), Office of 
Portfolio Management, Attn: Chandra 
Kelley, 77 Forsyth Street SW, Atlanta, 
GA 30303, at 404–562–2763, or by email 
at chandra.kelley@gsa.gov. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: This 
bulletin announces the redesignation of 
a Federal building. Public Law 117–74, 
dated December 21, 2021, redesignated 
the Federal building located at 167 
North Main Street in Memphis, TN, as 
the ‘‘Odell Horton Federal Building.’’ 

Katy Kale, 
Deputy Administrator of General Services. 
[FR Doc. 2022–10478 Filed 5–16–22; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6820–Y1–P 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND 
HUMAN SERVICES 

Food and Drug Administration 

[Docket No. FDA–2021–N–1226] 

Howard Stanley Head, Jr.: Final 
Debarment Order 

AGENCY: Food and Drug Administration, 
HHS. 
ACTION: Notice. 

SUMMARY: The Food and Drug 
Administration (FDA) is issuing an 
order under the Federal Food, Drug, and 
Cosmetic Act (FD&C Act) debarring 
Howard Stanley Head, Jr. for a period of 
5 years from importing or offering for 
import any drug into the United States. 
FDA bases this order on a finding that 
Mr. Head was convicted of one felony 
count under Federal law for conspiracy 
to import misbranded prescription 
drugs. The factual basis supporting Mr. 
Head’s conviction, as described below, 
is conduct relating to the importation 
into the United States of a drug or 
controlled substance. Mr. Head was 
given notice of the proposed debarment 
and was given an opportunity to request 
a hearing to show why he should not be 
debarred. As of March 24, 2022 (30 days 
after receipt of the notice), Mr. Head had 
not responded. Mr. Head’s failure to 
respond and request a hearing 
constitutes a waiver of his right to a 
hearing concerning this matter. 
DATES: This order is applicable May 17, 
2022. 
ADDRESSES: Submit applications for 
termination of debarment to the Dockets 
Management Staff, Food and Drug 
Administration, 5630 Fishers Lane, Rm. 
1061, Rockville, MD 20852, 240–402– 
7500, or at https://www.regulations.gov. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Jaime Espinosa, Division of Enforcement 
(ELEM–4029), Office of Strategic 
Planning and Operational Policy, Office 
of Regulatory Affairs, Food and Drug 
Administration, 12420 Parklawn Dr., 
Rockville, MD 20857, 240–402–8743, or 
at debarments@fda.hhs.gov. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

I. Background 

Section 306(b)(1)(D) of the FD&C Act 
(21 U.S.C. 335a(b)(1)(D)) permits 
debarment of an individual from 
importing or offering for import any 
drug into the United States if FDA finds, 
as required by section 306(b)(3)(C) of the 
FD&C Act, that the individual has been 
convicted of a felony for conduct 
relating to the importation into the 
United States of any drug or controlled 
substance. 
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On November 2, 2021, Mr. Head was 
convicted, as defined in section 
306(l)(1) of FD&C Act, in the U.S. 
District Court for the Eastern District of 
Kentucky-Central Division of Frankfort, 
when the court entered judgment 
against him for the offense of conspiracy 
to import misbranded prescription 
drugs, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 371. 
FDA’s finding that debarment is 
appropriate is based on the felony 
conviction referenced herein. The 
factual basis for this conviction is as 
follows: 

As contained in the indictment, filed 
on November 5, 2020, and in the plea 
agreement in Mr. Head’s case, filed June 
10, 2021, in or about June 2015 and 
continuing through October 2019, Mr. 
Head conducted a business under the 
name ‘‘Dr. Head’s Meds.’’ In conducting 
this business, on multiple occasions Mr. 
Head purchased thousands of generic 
medication tablets for erectile 
dysfunction from overseas suppliers 
located in countries such as India and 
Singapore. At his request, these 
suppliers sent packages containing 
generic versions of VIAGRA and CIALIS 
to Mr. Head’s residence and other 
locations via the U.S. Postal Service. 
The labeling accompanying these 
packages described their contents in an 
inaccurate or misleading manner, such 
as ‘‘Supplement.’’ After receiving the 
bulk shipments of generic erectile 
dysfunction tablets, Mr. Head sold them 
in smaller quantities to customers in the 
United States. 

As a result of this conviction, FDA 
sent Mr. Head, by certified mail, on 
January 21, 2022, a notice proposing to 
debar him for a 5-year period from 
importing or offering for import any 
drug into the United States. The 
proposal was based on a finding under 
section 306(b)(3)(C) of the FD&C Act 
that Mr. Head’s felony conviction under 
Federal law for conspiracy to import 
misbranded prescription drugs, in 
violation of 18 U.S.C. 371, was for 
conduct relating to the importation into 
the United States of any drug or 
controlled substance because he 
illegally imported and introduced 
misbranded prescription drug products 
into interstate commerce. In proposing a 
debarment period, FDA weighed the 
considerations set forth in section 
306(c)(3) of the FD&C Act that it 
considered applicable to Mr. Head’s 
offense and concluded that the offense 
warranted the imposition of a 5-year 
period of debarment. 

The proposal informed Mr. Head of 
the proposed debarment and offered 
him an opportunity to request a hearing, 

providing him 30 days from the date of 
receipt of the letter in which to file the 
request, and advised him that failure to 
request a hearing constituted a waiver of 
the opportunity for a hearing and of any 
contentions concerning this action. U.S. 
Postal Service records indicate that after 
a delivery attempt to Mr. Head’s 
residence was made and a notice left, 
the proposal and notice of opportunity 
for a hearing letter was picked up at his 
local post office on February 22, 2022. 
Mr. Head failed to request a hearing 
within the timeframe prescribed by 
regulation and has, therefore, waived 
his opportunity for a hearing and 
waived any contentions concerning his 
debarment (21 CFR part 12). 

II. Findings and Order 

Therefore, the Assistant 
Commissioner, Office of Human and 
Animal Food Operations, under section 
306(b)(3)(C) of the FD&C Act, under 
authority delegated to the Assistant 
Commissioner, finds that Mr. Howard 
Stanley Head, Jr. has been convicted of 
a felony under Federal law for conduct 
relating to the importation into the 
United States of any drug or controlled 
substance. FDA finds that the offense 
should be accorded a debarment period 
of 5 years as provided by section 
306(c)(2)(A)(iii) of the FD&C Act. 

As a result of the foregoing finding, 
Mr. Head is debarred for a period of five 
years from importing or offering for 
import any drug into the United States, 
effective (see DATES). Pursuant to section 
301(cc) of the FD&C Act (21 U.S.C. 
331(cc)), the importing or offering for 
import into the United States of any 
drug or controlled substance by, with 
the assistance of, or at the direction of 
Mr. Head is a prohibited act. 

Any application by Mr. Head for 
termination of debarment under section 
306(d)(1) of the FD&C Act should be 
identified with Docket No. FDA–2021– 
N–1226 and sent to the Dockets 
Management Staff (see ADDRESSSES). 
The public availability of information in 
these submissions is governed by 21 
CFR 10.20(j). 

Publicly available submissions will be 
placed in the docket and will be 
viewable at https://www.regulations.gov 
or at the Dockets Management Staff (see 
ADDRESSES) between 9 a.m. and 4 p.m., 
Monday through Friday, 240–402–7500. 

Dated: May 11, 2022. 
Lauren K. Roth, 
Associate Commissioner for Policy. 
[FR Doc. 2022–10505 Filed 5–16–22; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4164–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND 
HUMAN SERVICES 

Request for Information (RFI): 2022 
HHS Environmental Justice Strategy 
and Implementation Plan Draft Outline; 
Comment Period Extended 

AGENCY: Office of the Assistant 
Secretary for Health, Office of the 
Secretary, Department of Health and 
Human Services (HHS). 

ACTION: Notice of request for 
information; comment period extended. 

SUMMARY: On April 8, 2022, the 
Department of Health and Human 
Services (HHS) published into the 
Federal Register a Request for 
Information (RFI) which is located at 87 
FR 20876 to receive input from the 
public on HHS’s draft outline to further 
the development of the 2022 
Environmental Justice Strategy and 
Implementation Plan. Consistent with 
the policy of this administration 
directing HHS to make achieving 
environmental justice part of its 
mission, HHS would like to identify 
priority actions and strategies to best 
address environmental injustices and 
health inequities for people of color, 
disadvantaged, vulnerable, low-income, 
marginalized, and indigenous 
populations. With the engagement of 
and input from the public, the 2022 
Environmental Justice Strategy and 
Implementation Plan will serve as a 
guide to confront environmental and 
health disparities and implement a 
multifaceted approach that will serve 
vulnerable populations and 
communities disproportionately 
impacted by environmental burdens. 

DATES: To be assured consideration, 
comments must be received at the email 
address provided below, no later than 
midnight Eastern Time (ET) on June 18, 
2022. HHS will not reply individually to 
responders but will consider all 
comments submitted by the deadline. 
Do not provide confidential information 
as comments may be published or 
otherwise used for agency purposes. 

ADDRESSES: Please submit all responses 
via email to OASHcomments@hhs.gov 
as a Word document or in the body of 
an email. 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Dr. 
LaToria Whitehead, Senior Public 
Health Analyst, email: ceq6@cdc.gov, 
phone: (770) 488–3633. 
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